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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

The war in Iraq, an anemic economy,
and the continuing threat of terrorism
have made the past nineteen months
among the worst in aviation history.
It reminds me of the issues we faced
in the mid-70s when the company that
later became Willis Lease Finance was
launched. The United States was just
coming out of a time of political tur-
moil, a protracted bear market, the
fallout from the OPEC oil embargo,
and the fall of Saigon. We were able
to overcome the barriers to success in
those early days, and I am confident
we will continue to prosper in these
difficult times.

In spite of the turbulent conditions,
we generated a profit in 2002 — an
accomplishment which few companies
in the aviation industry can claim.
Our profitability was a direct result
of the versatility, creativity and cus-
tomer dedication demonstrated by
the forty-two extraordinary people
who make up the WLFC team.

During 2002, many of our airline
customers had difficulty forecasting
their spare engine requirements and
were not willing to make long-term
commitments. Others chose to delay
major maintenance expenditures on
their engines by leasing ours. As a

consequence, to retain maximum
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flexibility, these customers favored
shorter-term commitments, which
increased our engine turnover and
workloads in every department. The
number of lease proposals tripled
during the year as we accelerated our
remarketing efforts. This responsiveness
served us well as we increased the port-
folio urilization rate to 86.1% at the
end of 2002 from 80.0% at mid-year
and 84.6% at the end of 2001. Clearly,
the ability of our people to respond
effectively to the ever-changing needs
of our customers is one of our most

powerful competitive advantages.

2002 Results
In 2002, lease revenue declined 8%
to $55.4 million from $60.5 million
in 2001, reflecting the difficult market
conditions during the year. Net income
in 2002 totaled $3.6 million, or $0.41
per diluted share, compared to $6.9
million, or $0.78 per diluted share, in
2001. Pre-tax income from continuing
operations was $4.3 million in 2002
compared $12.0 million in 2001.
Several unusual items had a signifi-
cant impact on 2002 ner income: a net
gain of $4.1 million on the prepayment
of a credit facility, a $3.1 million write-
down on certain older equipment, a

$781,000 charge related to the repay-

ment of a prior credit facility, and a
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$491,000 tax credit resulting princi-
pally from a change in deferred state
tax liability estimates. In 2002, gains
on sale of equipment were significantly
lower, totaling $482,000 compared

to $5.6 million in 2001.

At a time when many in the aviation
industry were strapped for cash, we
demonstrated our financial strength
and savvy by successfully refinancing
and increasing our warehouse credit
facilicy. Our finance and legal team
put in a tremendous amount of work
realigning our financial relationships

and increasing our access to capital.

The Power Within

Our 2002 numbers don't fully tell the
story. They don’t reflect our resilience,
vitalicy and global reach. Technical,
legal, insurance, logistics, finance,
contracts and sales people, all have to
work together to lease and deliver an
engine to a custormer. Our ability to
work as a team creates a crucial com-
petitive advantage.

It’s easy to say we need to be faster
and more nimble than the next person,
but it’s significantly more difficult to
do. Our quick response to AOG (air-
craft on the ground) emergencies, for
example, illustrates how people through-

out the company execute at exceptional

levels for customers in need. These
emergencies, which often happen after
business hours when our headquarters
is closed, require a global effort and
orchestration. From locating a suitable
engine, to delivering meticulous docu-
mentation, to drawing up contracts,
to filing with regulators, to satisfying
the covenants in our lending agree-
ments, to transporting the engine to
the aircraft, we are remarkably success-
ful in providing emergency services

to customers.

Our company is known for its in-
house technical team — experts who
ensure that our engines are maintained
in accordance with all regulatory and
manufacturers’ standards. We are well
known in the industry for the quality
of our documentation, which is a criti-
cal component for engine placement.
By having in-house technical experts
in maintenance and repair standards,
we give our customers a higher degree
of confidence in the quality of our
leased engines.

Our size facilitates our speed. With
just 42 people, we don't have the layers
of bureaucracy that complicate and
constrain decision-making, flexibility
and responsiveness. We can accomplish
more in two days than many of our

competitors could in a week.




Charles F. Willis, iV

Global Outlook
Predicting what will happen in the
worldwide aviation markets this year
is as risky as predicting the weather.
We believe airlines, particularly the
large U.S. carriers, will continue to
suffer to varying degrees from severe
industry conditions this year. Fortun-
ately, only 16% of our revenue last
year came from U.S. carriers, and we
have no engines on lease to US Air,
United or Hawaiian. Nearly half of
our revenue comes from Europe,
which was a more stable marker in
2002, but has suffered more recently
from the effects of the war with Iraq.
The brightest forecast for the fore-
seeable future is in Asia, particularly

China, where we recently opened a

downtown Beijing representative office.

Beijing’s Peoples Daily recently quoted
a senior Boeing executive predicting,
“China’s civil aviation business will
triple in the next 20 years... based
on an annual growth rate of 7.6%
in passenger air travel.”

Over the past few years, we have
worked with Chinese aviation execu-
tives and technicians to familiarize

them with the intricacies of engine

leasing. Chinese airlines in the past had

not taken full advantage of operating

leases of aircraft engines. Last fall, we
hosted representatives from four major
Chinese airlines for a weeklong session
about engine leasing. This type of cul-
tural and business exchange is critical
in developing customer relationships.
Our people are multi-lingual, speaking
Mandarin, German, French, Spanish,
Russian, Swedish, Vietnamese, and
Italian. The ability to speak with our
customers in their languages, and to
understand their cultural distinctions

and subtleties, is vital to our success.

Looking Forward

Despite the positive outlook in Asia,
we do not expect to see significant
overall improvement in our markets
during 2003. A factor that may help
offset the current industry downturn
is our customers’ increasing need to
conserve cash. Consequently, engine
leasing may become an even more
viral part of their capital conservation
efforts in the coming year. We are care-
fully managing expenses, optimizing
our portfolio mix and working hard
to meet customers’ needs, These extra-
ordinary times require extraordinary
efforts, and our people have proven
their mettle in 2002. We will continue

to work harder and smarter.
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Looking at the long-term industry
prospects, | remain optimistic. Both
Boeing and Airbus predict the aviation
market will more than double in size
over the next 16 years. Air transporta-
tion is a key component in the global
economy today, and I expect it will
continue to grow in importance during
the next two decades. We have carved
out a profitable niche and earned the
respect of our peers and customers as
leaders in the industry. I remain con-
fident that the markets will recognize
the value of our franchise in the long
run and reward our stalwart and patient
shareholders. In the meantime, we are

grateful for your continued support.

Respectfully yours,

g

Charles E Willis, IV

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
APRIL 8, 2003



Sefesed

Finensial
Data

Selected Financial Darta

The following table summarizes selected consolidated financial data and operating information of the Company. The selected consoli-
dated financial and operating data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this report and the

Company'’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Years Ended December, 31 (dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Revenue

Lease revenue $ 55,397 $ 60515 $ 49,012 $ 44,079 $ 31,607
Gain on sale of leased equipment 482 5,636 8,129 11,371 12,628
Sale of equipment acquired for resale - - - 9,775 4,108
Net gain on debt prepayment 4,073 - — - —
Other income - — 489 - -
Total revenue $ 59952  $ 66,151 $ 57630  $ 65225  $ 48341
Income from continuing operations $ 3,596 $ 7,643 $ 5,474 $ 10,123 $ 8314
Net income $ 3,596 $ 6,944 $ 7.814 $ 3,283 $ 9,251
Basic earnings from continuing operations per common share $ 0.41 $ 0.87 $ 0.73 $ 1.37 $ 1.14
Diluted earnings from continuing operations per common share $ 0.41 $ 0.86 $ 0.72 $ 1.36 $ 1.1
Balance Sheet Data

Total assets $ 543,995 $ 532,453 $ 455,930 $ 408,752 $ 326,105
Debt (includes capital lease otligation) $ 364,680 $ 359,547 $ 301,346 $ 292,167 $ 214,860
Shareholders’ equity $ 105,530 $ 101,581 $ 95,690 $ 69,5638 $ 65,842
Lease Portfolio

Engines at end of the period - continuing operations 120 110 100 87 69
Engines at end of the period — discontinued operations - 4 10 14

Spare parts packages at the end of the period 4 4 4 4

Aircraft at the end of the period 6 6 6 8




Ferware-Locking Sietements

Except for historical information, the matters discussed in this
annual report contain forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. Do not unduly rely on forward-tooking
statements, which give only our expectations about the future and
are not guarantees. Forward-looking statements speak only as of
the date they are made, and the Company does not undertake any
obtigation to update them. The Company’s actual results may dif-
fer materially from the resulis discussed in the forward-looking
statements. Factors that might cause such a difference include, but
are not timited to, the effects on the airline industry and the global
economy of the September 11th attack, and the war in lraq; trends
in the airline industry, including growth rates of the Asian aviation
markets, shifts in demand from events such as the recent SARS
outbreak, fease durations and other economic factors; risks assogci-
ated with refurbishing and providing jet engines and aircraft; the
abitity of the Company to successfully negotiate equipment pur-
chases, sales and leases, to collect outstanding revenue commit-
ments and to control costs and expenses; changes in interest rate
fevels and- availability of capital to the Company and to our cus-
tomers; the ability of our staff to continue to meet the constantly
changing demands of our customers; regulatory changes in airline
operations, aircraft maintenance, accounting and tax standards;
the vatuation of engines in the secondary market; and other risks
detailed in the Company’s Report on Form 10-K and continuing
reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Comrission.

2002

Financial Statements




Management's Disewssien
ane Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of
Croerations

Overview

General. The Company’s core focus is providing operating
leases of aftermarket commercial aircraft engines and other
aircraft-related equipment. As of December 31, 2002, the
Company had a total portfolio of 56 lessees in 31 countries
and its total lease portfolio consisted of 120 engines and
related equipment, six commuter aircraft and four spare
parts packages with an aggregate net book value of $503.2
million. The Company actively manages its portfolio and
structures its leases in order to enhance residual values of
leased assets. The Company’s leasing business focuses on
popular Stage lil commercial jet aircraft engines manufac-
tured by CFM International, General Electric, Pratt &
Whitney, Rolls Royce and International Aero Engines.
These engines are the most widely used aircraft engines

in the world, powering Airbus, Boeing, and McDonnell
Douglas aircraft.

Critical Accounting Policies & Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements
requires the Company to make estimates and judgments
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, rev-
enues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, the Company
evaluates its estimates, including those related to residual
values, estimated asset lives, bad debts, income taxes,
and contingencies and litigation. The Company bases its
estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis

for making judgments about the carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or conditions.

The Company believes the following critical accounting
policies affect its more significant judgments and estimates
used in the preparation of its consolidated financial
statements.

Leasing Related Activities. Revenue from leasing

of aircraft equipment is recognized as operating lease

or finance lease revenue over the terms of the applicable
lease agreements. Where collection cannot be reasonably
assured, for example, upon a lessee bankruptey, the
Company does not recognize revenue. The Company also
estimates and charges to income a provision for bad debts
based on its experience in the business and with each
specific customer and the level of past due accounts. The
financial condition of the Company’s customers may deteri-
orate and result in actual losses exceeding the estimated
allowances. In addition, any deterioration in the financial
condition of the Company’s customers may adversely
affect future lease revenues. The vast majority of the
Company'’s leases are accounted for as operating leases.
Under an operating lease, the Company retains title to the
leased equipment, thereby retaining the potential benefit
and assuming the risk of the residual value of the leased
equipment.

The Company generally depreciates engines on a
straight-line basis over 15 years to a 55% residual value.
Spare parts packages are generally depreciated on a
straight-line basis over 15 years to a 256% residual value.
Aircraft are generally depreciated on a straight-line basis
over 13-20 years to a 15%-17% residual value. For assets
that are leased with an intent to disassemble upon lease
termination, the Company depreciates the assets over their
estimated lease term to a residual value based on an esti-
mate of the wholesale value of the parts after disassembly.
If useful lives or residual values are lower than those esti-
mated by the Company, upon sale of the equipment, a
loss may be realized. A change in either of these estimates
would cause an associated change in depreciation expense.

At the lease commencement, the Company often collects,
in advance, security deposits {(normaily equal to at least
one month’s lease payment) and both at lease commence-
ment and on an ongoing basis, maintenance reserves from
the lessee based on the creditworthiness of the lessee.

The security deposit is returned to the lessee after all lease
conditions have been met. Maintenance reserves are




accumulated in accounts maintained by the Company or
the Company's lenders and are used when normal repair
associated with engine use or maintenance is required.

In many cases, to the extent that cumulative maintenance
reserves are inadequate to fund normal repairs required
prior to return of the engine to the Company, the lessee
is obligated to cover the shortfall. Recovery is therefore
dependent on the financial condition of the lessee.

Sales Related Activities. For equipment sold out of

the Company’s lease portfolio, the Company recognizes the
gain or loss associated with the sale as revenue. Gain con-
sists of sales proceeds less the net book value of the equip-
ment sold and any costs directly associated with the sale.
Additionally, to the extent that any deposits or reserves are
not included in the sale and the purchaser of the equipment
assumes any liabilities associated therewith, such deposits
and reserves are included in the gain on sale.

Asset Valuation. The Company periodically reviews
its portfolio of assets for impairment in accordance with
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SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets.” Such review necessitates estimates of
current market values, residual values and component val-
ues. The estimates are based on currently available market
data and are subject to fluctuation from time to time. The
Company initiates its review whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a
long-lived asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of
an asset is measured by comparison of its carrying amount
to the expected future undiscounted cash flows (without
interest charges) that the asset is expected to generate. Any
impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair mar-
ket value. Significant management judgment is required in
the forecasting of future operating results which are used
in the preparation of projected undiscounted cash flows and
should different conditions prevail, material write-downs
may occur.

For further information on these and other accounting
policies adopted by the Company, refer to Note 1 of the
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Year Ended December 31, 2002, Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Revenue from continuing operations is summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31, (dollars in thousands)

Lease revenue

Gain on sale of leased equipment
Net gain on debt prepayment
Total

2002 2001
$ 55,397 92.4% $ 60,515 91.5%
482 0.8% 5,636 8.5%
4,073 6.8% - -
$ 58,952 100% $ 66,151 100%

Leasing Related Activities. Lease related revenue for
the year ended December 31, 2002, decreased 8% to $55.4
million from $60.5 million for the comparable period in
2001. This decrease primarily reflects an increased amount
of equipment off-lease and reduced average lease rate
factors, partially offset by an increase in the lease portfolio.
The aggregate of net book value of leased equipment and
net investment in direct finance lease at December 31, 2002
and 2001, was $503.2 million and $495.3 million, respec-
tively, an increase of 2%. At December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, approximately 14% and 15% of equipment by
book value were off-lease, however, the average utilization
for the year ended December 31, 2002, was 82% compared
to 91% in the prior year. The increased percentage of off-
lease equipment the Company experienced was due to the

overall condition of the airline industry, with many airline
customers having difficulty forecasting their spare engine
requirements due to varying degrees of uncertainty.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, 10 engines
were added to the Company’s lease portfolio at a total cost
of $47.7 million {including capitalized costs). Four engines
from the lease portfolio were sold. The engines sold had
a total net book value of $15.9 million and were sold for
a gain of $0.5 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, 21 engines
were added to the Company’s lease portfolio at a cost of
$127.6 million {including capitalized costs). Eleven engines
from the lease portfolio were sold to third parties or
avioserv (a subsidiary of SRT Group America). These
engines had a total net book value of $31.3 million and
were sold for a net gain of $5.6 million.
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Net Gain on Debt Prepayment. This item, for the
year ended December 31, 2002, relates to the prepayment
of a $35.0 million revolving credit facility at a discount to
its carrying value.

Depreciation Expense. Depreciation expense increased
18% to $19.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002,
from the comparable period in 2001, due primarily to the
increase in lease portfolio assets in 2002, accelerated depre-
ciation on certain engine types, and the reclassification of
engines previously disclosed as discontinued operations.

Write-down of Equipment. Write-down of equipment
to their estimated fair values from the application of SFAS
144 (and SFAS 121 in prior years) totaled $3.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to $1.0 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2001, due to a reduc-
tion in demand and market value for certain engine types
and management’s decision to dispose of, rather than
repair where not cost-effective, a number of engines.

General and Adminiscrative Expenses. General and
administrative expenses increased 10% to $14.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002, from the comparable
period in 2001 due mainly to increases in legal costs ($0.8
million), insurance premiums ($0.4 million) resulting from
the terrorist events of September 11, 2001, and increased
Directors and Officers insurance, and engine related main-
tenance and inspection costs ($0.4 million).

Net Interest and Finance Costs. Overall, net interest
and finance costs, which is comprised of interest expense,
residual sharing expense and interest income, decreased
21% to $18.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002,
from the comparable period in 2001. Interest expense de-
creased 21% to $19.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2002, from the comparable period in 2001, due to a
decrease in interest rates partially offset by an increase in
average debt outstanding during the period. This increase
in debt was primarily related to debt associated with the
increase in lease portfclio assets. Residual sharing expense

was $0.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2002,
compared to $0.4 million in 2001, due to the fact that the
Company settled its outstanding residual share obligations
in 2001. interest income for the year ended December 31,
2002, decreased to $0.4 million from $0.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2001, due mainly to reductions
in interest rates.

Income Taxes. Income taxes for the year ended December
31, 2002, decreased to $0.7 million from $4.4 million for the
comparable period in 2001 reflecting lower pre-tax income
and a lower effective tax rate. The overall effective tax rate
for the year ended December 31, 2002, was 17% compared
to 36% for the prior year, The effective tax rate in 2002 was
28%, before adjustments for state income tax apportion-
ment changes and deferred tax assets valuation allowances,
compared to 36% in 2001 due to an increase in the amount
of benefit obtained under the Extraterritorial Income
Exclusion as a percentage of pre-tax income. The remaining
decrease reflects a reduction in the estimated proportion

of revenue to be generated within California when the
California state tax timing differences reverse, offset by a
valuation allowance on deferred tax assets relating to state
net operating losses of $0.1 million where management
believes realizing the benefit of the loss carry forward is
not assured. The Company’s tax rate is subject to change
based on changes in the mix of assets leased to domestic
and foreign lessees, the proportions of revenue generated
within and outside of California and numerous other
factors, including changes in tax law.

Discontinued Operations. In November 2000, the
Company agreed to sell its engine parts and components
subsidiary {(WASI) and its membership interest in its engine
repair joint venture (PGTC LLC). The sale was completed on
November 30, 2000. Accordingly, the Company’s parts oper-
ations and its equity share of the resuits of the joint venture
were accounted for as discontinued operations. There were
no discontinued operations for the year ended December
31, 2002, as any remaining equipment still owned and not
disposed of as of December 31, 2001, were reclassified to
Continuing Operations effective January 1, 2002.
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Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2000

Revenue from continuing operations is summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31, (dollars in thousands}

Lease revenue
Gain on sale of leased equipment
Other income

Total

2001 2000
$ 60,515 91.5% $ 48,012 85.0%
5,636 8.5% 8,129 14.1%
- - 489 0.9%

$ 66,151 100% $ 57,630 100%

Leasing Related Activities. Lease related revenue for
the year ended December 31, 2001, increased 23% to $60.5
million from $49.0 million for the comparable period in
2000. This increase primarily reflects lease related revenues
from additional engines partially offset by reduced utiliza-
tion. The aggregate of net book value of leased equipment
and net investment in direct finance lease at December 31,
2001 and 2000, was $495.3 million and $416.7 million,
respectively, an increase of 19%. At December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively, approximately 15% and 7% of equipment
by book value were off-lease.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, 21 engines
were added to the Company’s lease portfolio at a total
cost of $127.6 million (including capitalized costs). Eleven
engines from the lease portfolio were sold. The engines
sold had a total net book value of $31.3 million and were
sold for a gain of $5.6 million. Included in the disposals
were 7 engines sold to avioserv, a refated party, for part-
out at a loss of $0.9 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2000, 18 engines
from the lease portfolio were sold to third parties or trans-
ferred to WASI for sale as parts. These engines had a total
net book value of $38.9 million and were sold for a gain
of $8.1 million.

Other Income. Other income for the year ended Dec-
ember 31, 2000, relates to a one-time event associated
with the recognition of a lease incentive for office and
warehouse space on assignment of the lease.

Depreciation Expense. Depreciation expense increased
34% to $16.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001,
from the comparable period in 2000, due primarily to the
increase in lease portfolio assets in 2001.

Write-Down of Equipment. Write-down of equipment
to their estimated fair values totaled $1.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2001, compared to $0.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2000, due to reductions

in demand and market prices on certain engine types.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and
administrative expenses increased 10% to $13.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001, from the comparable
period in 2000 due mainly to increases in staffing and relat-
ed costs ($0.4 million) and other items including increases
in accounting ($0.2 million), legal ($0.2 million), engine re-
lated maintenance and inspection costs ($0.2 million), bad
debt ($0.1 million) and insurance premiums {$0.1 mitlion).

Net Interest and Finance Costs. Overall, net interest
and finance costs, which is comprised of interest expense,
residual sharing expense and interest income decreased 3%
to $23.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, from
the comparable period in 2000. Interest expense decreased
2% to $24.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001,
from the comparable period in 2000, due to a decrease in
interest rates partially offset by an increase in average debt
outstanding during the period. This increase in debt was
primarily related to debt associated with the increase in
lease portfolio assets. Residual sharing expense decreased
44% to $0.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001,
from $0.6 million for the comparable period in 2000. In
2001, the Company settled its outstanding residual share
obligations. In 2000, residual sharing arrangements applied
to two of the Company’s engines and were a function of the
difference between the debt associated with the residual
sharing arrangement and estimated residual proceeds. The
Company accrued for its residual sharing obfigations using
net book value as an estimate for residual proceeds. Interest
income for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,
was $0.9 million.
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Income Taxes. Income taxes, exclusive of tax on discon-
tinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2001,
increased to $4.4 million from $3.5 miilion for the compara-
ble period in 2000. This increase reflects an increase in the
Company’s income from continuing operations for the year
ended December 31, 2001. The Company’s tax rate is sub-
ject to change based an changes in the mix of domestic and
foreign leased assets, the proportions of revenue generated
within and outside of California and numerous other fac-
tors, including changes in tax law. The effective tax rate in
2001 was 36% compared to 39% in 2000 due to the

Company’s election for Extraterritorial Income Exclusion
relief in 2001 relating to certain qualifying leases.

Discontinued Operations. In November 2000, the
Company agreed to sell its engine parts and components
subsidiary {(WASI) and its membership interest in its engine
repair joint venture (PGTC LLC). The sale was completed on
November 30, 2000. Accordingly, the Company's parts oper-
ations and its equity share of the results of the joint venture
are accounted for as discontinued operations.

Net earnings from the discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, were as follows:

{doltars in thousands) 2001 2000
Revenue

Operating lease income $ 637 $ 2,383
Spare parts sales — 23,473
Sale of equipment acquired for resale - 2,500
Other income - (20)
Total revenue $ 637 $ 28,342
Expenses

Depreciation expense $ 343 $ 2,206
Cost of spare parts sales 150 18,030
Cost of equipment acquired for resale - 2,150
General and administrative - 3,153
Total expenses $493 $ 25,539
Earnings from operations $144 $ 2,803
Net interest and finance cost 49 1,037
Loss from unconsolidated affiliate - 1,344
Earnings before income taxes $ 95 $ 422
Income taxes (38) (164)
Net earnings from discontinued operations $ 57 $ 258
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The net {loss)/gain on disposal of discontinued operations for years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, was as follows:

{dollars in thousands) 2001 2000
Proceeds from sale of shares in WAS} and interest in PGTC LLC $ - $ 37,985
Book value of assets sold - (33,759)

$ — $ 4,226
Transaction costs - {448)
Operating loss from measurement date to closing — (588}
Post-closing sale price adjustment (384) -
Loss on disposal and write-down of leased engine portfolio (879) (471)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of discontinued operations $(1,263) $ 2,719
Income taxes 507 (637)

(Loss)/gain on disposal of discontinued operations

$ (756) $ 2,082

Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, FASB issued SFAS 143 “Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations.” Statement 143 addresses the
financial accounting and reporting for obligations associat-
ed with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and
associated retirement costs. The Statement requires that the
fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation be
recognized in the period in which it is incurred if a reason-
able estimate of fair value can be made. The Statement is
in effect for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The
Company did not undertake any transactions during the
year ended December 31, 2002, nor has any assets that are
affected by this Statement.

In August 2001, FASB issued SFAS 144, “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” This
Statement supercedes SFAS 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to
be Disposed of” and elements of APB 30, “Reporting the
Results of Operations-Reporting the Effects on Disposal of
a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual or
Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions.”

Statement 144 establishes a single-accounting model for
long-lived assets to be disposed of while maintaining many
of the provisions relating to impairment testing and valua-
tion. The Statement became effective from January 1, 2002,
The adoption of this Statement did not materially change
the way the Company reviews and calculates asset impair-
ment charges. During the year ended December 31, 2002,
as a result of its review, the Company recorded impairment
charges of $3.1 million. During the year ended December
31, 2001, the Company recorded a similar charge of $1.2
miltion in continuing and discontinued operations.

In April 2002, FASB issued SFAS 145, “Rescission of
Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement 13, and Technical Corrections.” This Statement
rescinds Statement 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from
Extinguishment of Debt,” Statement 64, “Extinguishments
of Debt made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements” and
Statement 44, “Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor
Carriers” and amends Statement 13, “Accounting for
Leases.” Statement 44 was issued to cover accounting for
the transition to the Motor Carrier Act of 1980, which, hav-
ing been completed, renders the Statement unnecessary.
As a result of rescission of Statements 4 and 64, gains or
losses on extinguishment of debt should be classified as
Extraordinary Items only if they meet the criteria in APB
Opinion 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations.” The
amendments to Statement 13 are to improve consistency
between accounting for sale-leaseback transactions and
transactions that have similar economic effects as sale-
leaseback transactions. In the fourth quarter of 2002, the
Company prepaid a revolving credit facility at a discount
and on the basis of guidance under SFAS 145 recorded
the gain as “Net Gain on Debt Prepayment” under income
from Continuing Operations.

In June 2002, FASB issued SFAS 1486, “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” Statement
146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit
or disposal activity be recognized and measured initially at
fair value only when the liability is incurred. The Company
has not undertaken any transactions that are affected by
Statement 146.

In November 2002, FASB issued Interpretation No. 45,
“Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness
of Others.” The Interpretation requires certain guarantees to
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be recorded at fair value and to make significant new disclo-
sures, even when the likelihood of making any payments
under the guarantee is remote.

The Company has a number of guarantees associated
with its debt facilities which require disclosure but has no
guarantees that require fair value measurement. (Refer to
Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Liquidity and
Capital Resources for information on the debt guarantees.)

In December 2002, FASB issued SFAS 148 “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure -
an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” This
Statement amends SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition
for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation togeth-
er with enhanced disclosure requirements.

This Statement permits two additional transition methods
for entities that adopt the preferable method of accounting
for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this
Statement does not permit the use of the original Statement
123 prospective method of transition for changes to the fair
value based method made in fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2003.

The Company has not adopted the voluntary provisions
of SFAS 123, as described in the accompanying footnotes
to the financial statements, and has opted to make the
required disclosures.

Liquidity and Capiral Resources

Historically, the Company has financed its growth through
borrowings secured by its equipment lease portfolio. Cash
of approximately $66.4 million, $142.8 million and $104.4
million, in the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively, was derived from this activity. In these
same time periods $61.2 million, $84.6 million and $95.3
million, respectively, was used to pay down related debt
or capital lease obligations. On November 30, 2000, net
proceeds from a private placement of common stock and
options were approximately $18.2 million. Cash flow from
operating activities generated $31.6 million, $33.3 miliion
and $27.7 million in the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Company’s primary use of funds is for the purchase
of equipment for lease. Approximately $47.7 million, $127.6
million and $137.9 million of funds were used for this pur-
pose in the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

Cash flows from operations are driven significantly by
changes in revenue. While the Company has experienced
some deterioration in lease rates, these have been offset
by reductions in interest rates such that the spread between
lease rates and interest rates has remained relatively con-
stant throughout 2002. The lease revenue stream, in the

short-term, is at fixed rates while a substantial amount

of the Company’s debt is at variable rates. If interest rates
increase it is unlikely the Company could increase lease
rates in the short term and this would cause a reduction

in the Company’s earnings. Revenue is also affected by
the amount of equipment off-lease. Approximately 14%,
by book value, of the Company’s assets were off-lease at
December 31, 2002, compared to approximately 15% at
December 31, 2001, however, the average utilization rate
for the year ended December 31, 2002, was 82% compared
to 91% in the prior year. The increased percentage of off-
lease equipment the Company experienced was due to the
overall condition of the airline industry, with many airline
customers having difficulty forecasting their spare engine
requirements. Increases in off-lease rates as well as det-
erioration in lease rates that are not offset by reduction

in interest rates, will have a negative impact in earnings
and cash flows from operations.

At December 31, 2002, notes payable consists of bank
loans totaling $364.7 million payable over periods of 1 to
7 years with current interest rates varying between app-
roximately 3.32% and 8.6% (excluding the effect of the
Company’s interest rate hedges). The significant facilities
are described below.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had a $125.0 million
revolving credit facility to finance the acquisition of aircraft
engines and spare parts for lease as well as for general
working capital purposes. As of December 31, 2002, this
facility was fully drawn. The facility matures in May 2004.
The interest rate on this facility at December 31, 2002, was
LIBOR plus 2.00%. Under the $125 million revolver facility,
all subsidiaries except WLFC-AC1 and Willis Engine Funding
LLC (“WEF"} jointly and severally guarantee payment and
performance of the terms of the loan agreement. The maxi-
mum guarantee is $125 million plus any accrued and
unpaid interest, fees or reimbursements but is limited at
any given time to the sum of the principal outstanding plus
interest and fees. The guarantee would be triggered by a
default under the agreement and the lenders making a call
under the guarantee. The lenders have the option to make
either a call to make up a payment or performance defic-
iency or it could be a full call of the loan.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2002, the
Company replaced its $190.0 million debt warehouse
facility with a $200.0 million debt warehouse facility on
similar terms but with a different group of lenders. In
December, 2002, the facility was increased to $250.0 million.
A wholly-owned special purpose entity, WEF was created
for the purpose of financing jet aircraft engines acquired
by such finance subsidiary from the Company. The facility
has a 1-year revolving period ending September 11, 2003,
followed, if not renewed, by a 4-year amortization period.
However, the $50.0 million increase in the facility is only




available to be drawn up until March 31, 2003. The facility’s
structure is designed to facilitate public or private securi-
tized notes intended to be issued by the special purpose
finance subsidiary. There is no assurance that a securitiza-
tion can be completed or completed on terms that are favor-
able or acceptable to the Company. If a securitization cannot
be completed, the Company will be required to renegotiate
this facility with its lenders. Refer to “Factors that May
Affect Future Resuits” for further discussion of the risks the
Company faces. The facility notes are divided into $225.0
million Class A notes and $25.0 million Class B notes. The
Company has a guarantee to the Class B Noteholders deter-
mined by a formula in the debt agreement. The maximum
amount of the guarantee is $25.0 million. If WEF defaults

on its obligations, the full amount of the Class B notes out-
standing (together with any accrued interest and fees} is
due and payable immediately. At December 31, 2002, the
guarantee is approximately $20.0 million. The assets of WEF
and any associated owner trust are not available to satisfy
the obligations of the Company or any of its affiliates, until
all obligations are repaid. The subsidiary is consolidated for
financial statement presentation purposes. At December 31,
2002, $50.0 million is available under the facility. Interest on
the Class A notes is currently a commercial paper rate plus a
weighted average spread of approximately 1.48%. Interest on
the Class B notes is currently LIBOR plus a weighted average
spread of 4.06%. The spreads will increase by pre-determined
amounts during the loan to maximum average spreads of
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2.69% and 6.28%, respectively, by September 2003.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had a $24.5 million
term loan facility available to a wholly-owned consolidated
subsidiary of the Company, WLFC-AC1 Inc., for the financing
of jet aircraft engines sold by the Company to such sub-
sidiary. The facility is a five-year term loan with final maturi-
ty of June 30, 2005. The interest rate is LIBOR plus 2.05%.
This facility is fully drawn. The Company has guaranteed
the obligations of WLFC-AC1 under the terms of this facility.
The lenders have the ability, upon default, to either call the
full amount of the loan or draw upon the guarantee to cure
a deficiency. The maximum amount of the guarantee is
therefore the principal sum outstanding plus any accrued
and unpaid interest and fees.

In the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2002, the
Company repaid a $35.0 million revolving credit facility
with a financial institution. Borrowings under the facility
accrued interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 2.00% per annum
and were secured by specific engines and leases pledged
to the lender. The loan was repaid at a discount generating
a net gain on prepayment of $4.1 million.

At December 31, 2002, LIBOR was approximately 1.38%
and the commercial paper rate was approximately 1.42%.
At December 31, 2001, the rates were approximately 1.87%
and 2.04%, respectively.

Approximately $10.8 million of the Company's debt is
repayable during 2003. Such repayments consist of sched-
uled installments due under term loans.

The table below summarizes the Company’s contractual commitments at December 31, 2002.

Contractual Payments Due {in thousands) 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter Total
Contractual Obligation

Debt $ 10,840 $ 140,669 $ 36,895 $14,108 $11,777 $ 150,391 $ 364,680
Operating leases on Company premises $ 390 $ 328 $ 349 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,087
Purchase of equipment $ 1,275 $ - $ - $ - $ — $ - $ 1,275

Approximately $349.5 million of the above debt is subject
to the Company continuing to comply with the covenants of
each financing, including debt/equity ratios, minimum tangi-
ble net worth and minimum interest coverage ratios, and
other eligibility criteria including customer and geographic
concentration restrictions. In addition, the Company can typ-
ically borrow between 80% to 90% of an engine purchase
price and only between 50% to 80% of an aircraft or spare
parts purchase price under these facilities, so the Company
must have other available funds for the balance of the pur-
chase price of any new equipment to be purchased or it will

not be permitted to draw on these facilities for a particular
purchase. The facilities are also cross-defaulted. If the
Company does not comply with the covenants or eligibility
requirements, the Company may not be permitted to bor-
row additional funds and accelerated payments may
become necessary. Additionally, debt is secured by engines
on lease to customers and to the extent that engines are
returned from lease early or are sold, repayment of that por-
tion of the debt could be accelerated. The Company was in
compliance with all covenants at December 31, 2002.
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As a result of the floating rate structure of the majority of
the Company’s borrowings, the Company’s interest expense
associated with borrowings will vary with market rates. In
addition, commitment fees are payable on the unused por-
tion of the facilities.

The Company'’s lease of its office premises in Sausalito
expires on December 31, 2005. The sublease of Company
premises in San Diego expires in November 2003.

The Company also has commitments to purchase equip-
ment for delivery during 2003, totaling approximately $1.3
million.

The Company also holds a 7% interest, accounted for
under the Cost method, in a joint venture in China, Sichuan
Snecma Aero-Engine Maintenance Co. Ltd. The Company
has invested $1.5 million to date.

The Company believes that its current equity base, inter-
nally generated funds and existing debt facilities are suffi-
cient to maintain the Company’s current level of operations.
A decline in the level of internally generated funds such
as could result if off-lease rates increase or a decrease in
the availability under the Company’s existing debt facilities
would impair the Company’s ability to sustain its current
level of operations. The Company is currently discussing
additions to its debt base with its commercial and invest-
ment banks. If the Company is not able to access additional
debt, its ability to continue to grow its asset base consistent
with historical trends will be impaired and its future growth
limited to that which can be funded from internally gener-
ated capital.

Management of Interest Rate Exposure

At December 31, 2002, $351 million of the Company’s
borrowings were on a variable rate basis at various inter-
est rates tied to LIBOR or commercial paper rates. The
Company's equipment leases are generally structured at
fixed rental rates for specified terms. Increases in interest
rates could narrow or eliminate the spread, or resultin a
negative spread, between the rental revenue the Company
realizes under its leases and the interest rate that the
Company pays under its borrowings.

To mitigate exposure to interest rate changes, the
Company has entered into interest rate swap agreements
which have notional outstanding amounts of $55.0 million,
with remaining terms ¢f between 8 and 60 months and
fixed rates of between 3.32% and 5.96%. The Company
has also purchased during 2002, a number of forward-
commencing caps with notional amounts totaling $60.0
million, terms of 3 years, effective dates commencing in
2003 and rates capped at 5.5%. The fair value of the swaps
at December 31, 2002 and 2001, was negative $1.9 million
and $2.9 million respectively, representing a liability of
the Company. The fair value of the caps at December 31,
2002, was positive $0.1 million, representing an asset of
the Company.

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2002,
was increased due to the Company’s interest rate hedges
by approximately $2.8 million compared to $1.9 million in
the comparable period in 2001. For the year ended
December 31, 2000, interest expense was reduced due to
the Company'’s interest rate hedges by approximately $0.5
million. The Company will be exposed to risk in the event
of non-performance of the interest rate hedge counter-par-
ties, The Company anticipates that it may hedge additional
amounts of its floating rate debt during the next several
months, and has entered into a further swap contract in
January 2003 with a $20.0 million notional, 3.45% fixed
rate and a five-year term.

Related Party and Similar Transactions

The Company continues to use PGTC LLC's services to
repair/refurbish engines prior to sale or re-lease. The
Company also sells engines to avioserv, The Company has
also entered into put option arrangements regarding certain
engines scheduled to be run to the end of their useful lives
to sell them at the Company'’s discretion, to avioserv at
pre-determined prices. The Company notified avioserv of
its intention to exercise put options with respect to four
engines and expects to close the puts during 2003, subject
to satisfactory resolution of a contract dispute with avioserv.
The Company also leases office space from avioserv with
the lease term expiring November 30, 2003.

The Company entered into a business cooperation period
with Flightlease AG and SR Technics Group (SRT) originally
scheduled to end on November 30, 2003, however Flightlease
is now in liquidation, and SRT has sold its interest in SR
Technics Switzerland, to a group consisting of 3i (an invest-
ment company) and SRT's management, and as a result,
the cooperation agreement was terminated January 20,
2003. During the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, there were no transactions initiated by either
party. Flightlease and SRT are members of FlightTechnics,
an entity that owns 15% of the Company’s common stock.

The Company leases engines to SR Technics Switzerland
having a book value of approximately $40.3 million with
lease terms expiring in up to eight years. The lease revenue
represents less than 10% of total revenues and SR Technics
Switzerland is the single largest lessee of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company
entered into a contractor’s agreement with a former execu-
tive of Flightlease and current Director of the Company,
Hans Jérg Hunziker. The agreement is for a one-year term,
ending September 2003, to provide strategic advice and
investigation into additional sources of capital.




Factors that May Affect Fucure Results

Except for historical information contained herein, the dis-
cussion in this report contains forward-looking statements
that involve risks and uncertainties, such as statements

of the Company’s plans, objectives, expectations and inten-
tions. Forward-looking statements give the Company’s
expectations about the future and are not guarantees.
Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they
are made, and the Company does not undertake any obliga-
tion to update them to reflect changes that occur after that
date. The Company’s actual results could differ materially
from those discussed herein. Factors that could cause or
contribute to such differences include those discussed
below. The cautionary statements made in this report
should be read as being applicable to all related forward-
looking statements wherever they appear in this report

or in other written or oral statements by the Company.

The business in which the Company is engaged is capital
intensive. Accordingly, the Company’s ability to successfully
execute its business strategy and to sustain its operations
is dependent, in large part, on the availability of debt and
equity capital. There can be no assurance that the necessary
amount of capital will continue to be available to the
Company on favorable terms or at all. The Company's
inability to obtain sufficient capital, or to renew its credit
facilities could result in increased funding costs and would
limit the Company’s ability to: (i) add new equipment to its
portfolio, (ii) fund its working capital needs, and (iii} finance
possible future acquisitions. The Company’s inability to
obtain sufficient capital would have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and/
or results of operations.

The Company retains title to the equipment that it leases
to third parties. Upon termination of a lease, the Company
will seek to re-lease or sell the equipment. The Company
also engages in the selective purchase and resale of com-
mercial aircraft engines. On occasion, the Company pur-
chases engines without having a firm commitment for their
lease or sale. Numerous factors, many of which are beyond
the Company's control, may have an impact on the
Company'’s ability to re-lease or sell equipment on a timely
basis, including the following: {i} general market conditions,
(ii) the condition of the equipment upon termination of the
lease, (iii) the maintenance services performed during the
lease term and, as applicable, the number of hours remain-
ing until the next major maintenance is required, (iv) regula-
tory changes (particularly those imposing environmental,
maintenance and other requirements on the operation of
aircraft engines), (v} changes in the supply of, or demand
for, or cost of aircraft engines, and (vi) technological devel-
opments. There is no assurance that the Company will be
able to re-lease or sell equipment on a timely basis or on
favorable terms. The failure to re-lease or sell aircraft equip-
ment on a timely basis or on favorable terms could have a
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material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial
condition and/or results of operations.

The Company experiences fluctuations in its operating
results. Such fluctuations may be due to a number of
factors, including: (i} general economic conditions, {ii) the
timing of sales of engines, (iii} financial difficulties experi-
enced by airlines, especially U.S. airlines, (iv) interest rates,
(v) downturns in the air transportation industry, including
the impact of September 11, 2001, events and changes in
fuel prices (vi) unanticipated early lease termination or a
default by a lessee, (vii) the timing of engine acquisitions,
(viii) engine marketing activities, (ix) fluctuations in market
prices for the Company's assets, (x) downward pressure on
lease rates, and (xi) the present war in lrag. The Company
anticipates that fluctuations from period to period will con-
tinue in the future. As a result, the Company believes that
comparisons to results of operations for preceding periods
are not necessarily meaningful and that results of prior
periods should not be relied upon as an indication of future
performance.

As of December 31, 2002, approximately 56% by value
of the Company's equipment available for iease was either
off-lease, on month-to-month leases or on leases expiring
in 2003. At December 31, 2001, approximately 50% by value
of the Company’s equipment was similarly categorized. The
ability of the Company to successfully remarket this equip-
ment will have a significant impact on the Company’s future
results and on its ability to draw under certain of its credit
facilities.

A lessee may default in performance of its lease obliga-
tions and the Company may be unable to enforce its reme-
dies under a lease. The Company’s inability to collect receiv-
ables due under a lease or to repossess aircraft equipment
in the event of a default by a lessee could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condi-
tion and/or results of operations. Various airlines have expe-
rienced financial difficulties in the past, certain airlines have
filed for bankruptcy and a number of such airlines have
ceased operations. In the United States where a debtor
seeks protection under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the United
States Code {the Bankruptcy Code), creditors are automati-
cally stayed from enforcing their rights. In the case of
United States certificated airlines, Section 1110 of the
Bankruptcy Code provides certain relief to lessors of aircraft
equipment. The scope of Section 1110 has been the subject
of significant litigation and there is no assurance that the
provisions of Section 1110 will protect the Company's
investment in an aircraft, aircraft engines or parts in the
event of a lessee’s bankruptcy. In addition, Section 1110
does not apply to lessees located outside of the United
States and applicable foreign laws may not provide compa-
rable protection. Leases of spare parts may involve addi-
tional risks. For example, it is likely to be more difficult to
recover parts in the event of a lessee default and the resid-
ual value of parts may be less ascertainable than an engine.

pl5



MB&A
Contiaued

The Company’s leases are generally structured at fixed
rental rates for specified terms while many of the Company’s
borrowings are at floating rates. Increases in interest rates
could narrow or eliminate the spread, or result in a negative
spread, between the rental revenue the Company realizes
under its leases and the interest rate the Company pays
under its borrowings, and have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s business, financial condition and/or results
of operations.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2002, 84%
of the Company’s lease revenue was generated by leases
to foreign customers. Such international leases may present
greater risks to the Company because certain foreign laws,
regulations and judicial procedures may not be as protec-
tive of lessor rights as those which apply in the United
States. All leases require payment in United States (U.S.)
currency. If these lessees’ currency devalues against the
U.S. dollar, the lessees could potentially encounter difficulty
in making the U.S. dollar denominated payment. The
Company is also subject to the timing and access to courts
and the remedies local laws impose in order to collect its
lease payments and recover its assets. In addition, political
instability abroad and changes in international policy also
present risk of expropriation of the Company’s leased
engines. Furthermore, many foreign countries have cur-
rency and exchange laws regulating the international
transfer of currencies.

The Company’s lease portfolio has grown significantly
in recent years. The Company’s growth has placed, and is
expected to continue to place, a significant strain on the
Company’s managerial, operational and financial resources.
There is no assurance that the Company will be able to
effectively manage the expansion of its operations, or that
the Company’s systems, procedures or controls will be ade-
quate to support the Company’s operations, in which event
the Company’s business, financial condition and/or results
of operations could be adversely affected. The Company
may also acquire businesses that would complement or
expand the Company'’s existing businesses. Any acquisition
or expansion made by the Company may result in one or
more of the following events: (i) the incurrence of additional
debt, (i) future charges to earnings related to the impair-
ment of goodwill and other intangible assets, {iii) difficulties
in the assimilation of operations, services, products and
personnel, {iv) an inability to sustain or improve historical
revenue levels, (v) diversion of management’s attention
from ongoing business operations, and (vi) potential loss

of key employees. Any of the foregoing factors could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial
condition and/or results of operations.

The markets for the Company’s products and services are
extremely competitive, and the Company faces competition
from a number of sources. These include aircraft, engine
and aircraft parts manufacturers, aircraft and aircraft engine
lessors and airline and aircraft service and repair compa-
nies. Certain of the Company’s competitors have substan-
tially greater resources than the Company, including greater
name recognition, a broader range of material, complemen-
tary lines of business and greater financial, marketing and
other resources. In addition, equipment manufacturers, and
other aviation aftermarket suppliers may vertically integrate
into the markets that the Company serves, thereby signifi-
cantly increasing industry competition. There can be no
assurance that competitive pressures will not materially and
adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition
and/or results of operations.

The Company’s leasing activities generate significant
depreciation allowances that provide the Company with
substantial tax benefits on an ongoing basis. In addition,
the Company’s lessees currently enjoy favorable accounting
and tax treatment by entering into operating leases. Any
change to current tax laws or accounting principles that
make operating lease financing less attractive or affect the
Company’s recognition of revenue or expense would have
a material impact on the Company’s business, financial
condition and/or results of operations.

The Company obtains a substantial portion of its invento-
ries of aircraft and engines from airlines, overhaul facilities
and other suppliers. There is no organized market for air-
craft and engines, and the Company must rely on field rep-
resentatives and personnel, advertisements and its reputa-
tion as a buyer of surplus inventory in order to generate
opportunities to purchase such equipment. The market for
bulk sales of surplus aircraft and engines is highly competi-
tive, in some instances involving a bidding process. While
the Company has been able to purchase surplus inventory
in this manner successfully in the past, there is no assur-
ance that surplus aircraft and engines of the type required
by the Company’s customers will be available on acceptable
terms when needed in the future or that the Company will
continue to compete effectively in the purchase of such sur-
plus equipment.




Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors of Willis Lease Finance
Corporation and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Willis Lease Finance Corporation and subsidiaries
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and
the related consolidated statements of income, sharehold-
ers’ equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December
31, 2002. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our respon-
sibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We have conducted our audits in accordance with audit-
ing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence support-

ing the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presenta-
tion. We believe our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Willis Lease Finance Corporation
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each
of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

KPe LP

FEBRUARY 11, 2003
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Year Ended December 31, {in thousands, except share data)} 2002 2001
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents including restricted cash of $24,486

and $20,351 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively $ 27,289 $ 24,817
Equipment held for operating lease, less accumulated depreciation

of $564,687 and $40,097 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively 496,398 488,042
Net investment in direct finance lease 6,832 7,299
Operating lease related receivable, net of allowances of $299

and $175 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively 3,380 2,488
Net assets of discontinued operations - 1,130
Investments 1,480 1,480
Assets under derivative instruments 57 -
Other assets 8,559 7,197
Total assets $ 543,995 $ 532,453
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 4,328 $ 4,450

Liabilities under derivative instruments 1,903 2,908

Deferred income taxes 23,589 22,804

Notes payable 364,680 359,547

Maintenance reserves 34,211 31,761

Security deposits 3,501 3,496

Unearned lease revenue 6,253 5,908
Total liabilities 438,465 430,872
Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred stock {$0.01 par value, 5,000,000 shares

authorized; none outstanding) - -
Common stock, ($0.01 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized;

8,833,978 and 8,825,953 shares issued and outstanding

as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively) 88 88
Paid-in capital in excess of par 61,648 61,532
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax of $360 and

$1,091 as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively {1,576) (1,815)
Retained earnings 45,372 41,776
Total shareholders’ equity 105,530 101,681
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 543,985 $ 632,453

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.




Consolidated Statements of Income
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Years Ended December 31, {in thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000
Revenue
Lease revenue $ 55,397 $ 60,515 $49,012
Gain on sale of leased equipment 482 5,636 8,129
Net gain on debt prepayment 4,073 - -
Other income - - 489
Total revenue 59,952 66,151 57,630
Expenses
Depreciation expense 19,449 16,485 12,269
Write-down of equipment 3,052 962 147
General and administrative 14,439 13,136 11,927
Total expenses 36,940 30,583 24,343
Earnings from operations 23,012 35,568 33,287
Interest expense 18,110 24,125 24,609
Interest income (432) (934) (902}
Residual share — 360 638
Net interest and finance costs 18,678 23,551 24,345
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 4,334 12,017 8,942
Income taxes (738) {4,374) (3,468)
Income from continuing operations 3,586 7,643 5,474
Discontinued Operations
Income from discontinued operations {net of income tax expense of $38

and $164 for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively) - 57 258
(Loss)/gain on disposal of discontinued operations {net of income tax (benefit)/expense

of ($507) and $637 for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively) - (756) 2,082

- (699) 2,340

Net income $ 3,596 $ 6,944 $ 7,814
Basic earnings per common share:

Income from continuing operations $ 041 $ 087 $ 073

Discontinued operations - (0.08) 0.31

Net income $ 0.41 $ 0.79 $ 1.04
Diluted earnings per common share:

Income from continuing operations $ 041 $ 086 $ 072

Discontinued operations - (0.08) 0.31

Net income $ 041 $ 078 $ 1.03
Average common shares outstanding 8,831 8,771 7,512
Diluted average common shares outstanding 8,851 8,892 7,607

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income

Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 & 2000

Accumulated

Issued and Paid-in Other
Outstanding Capital in Comprehensive Total
Shares of Comman Excess Income/(Loss) Retained Shareholders’
(in thousands) Common Stock Stock of Par (Net) Earnings Equity
Balances at December 31, 1999 7.398 $74 $ 42,446 $ - $ 27,018 $ 69,638
Net income — — —_ - 7,814 7,814
Shares issued 1.307 13 15,004 - - 15,017
Options granted - — 3,321 - — 3,321
Balances at December 31, 2000 8,705 87 60,771 — 34,832 95,690
Net income — — — - 6,944 6,944
Other comprehensive loss
Transition adjustment for hedging instruments
as of January 1, 2001, net of tax of $279 — - — (464) - (464)
Net loss on cash flow hedging instruments,
net of tax of $812 — — — (1,351) — (1,351)
Total comprehensive income 5,129
Shares issued 121 1 671 - - 672
Tax benefit on disqualified dispositions
of qualified shares — — 90 - - 90
Balances at December 31, 2001 8,826 88 61,532 (1,815) 41,776 101,581
Net income - - - - 3,596 3,696
Other comprehensive income
Net gain on cash flow hedging instruments,
net of tax of $131 - - - 239 - 238
Total comprehensive income 3,835
Shares issued 8 - 40 — - 40
Tax benefit on disqualified dispositions
of qualified shares - - 74 - - 74
Balances at December 31, 2002 8,834 $ 88 $ 61,646 $ (1,576) $ 45,372 $ 105,530

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, {in thousands)
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2002 2001 2000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Write-down of equipment
Allowances and provisions
Stock option compensation
Loss on derivative instruments
Gain on sale of leased equipment
Loss/(gain} on sale of discontinued operations
Loss from unconsolidated affiliate
Write-off of debt issuance costs
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred income taxes
Residual share payable
Maintenance deposits
Security deposits
Unearned lease revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Proceeds from sale of equipment held for operating lease {net of selling expenses)
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations

Purchase of equipment held for operating lease

Purchase of property, equipment and furnishings

Investment at cost

Principal payments received on direct finance lease

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of notes payable

Debt issuance cost

Purchase of derivative instruments

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Principal payments on notes payable

Principal payments on capital lease obligation

Net cash provided by financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period including restricted cash of $20,351,
$16,666 and $15,992 at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period including restricted cash of $24,486,
$20,351 and $16,666 at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively

$ 3,596 $ 6944 $ 7814

19,448 17,093 14,475
3,052 962 147
200 175 -

- 162 144

99 - -
(482) (5,636) (8,129}
- 613 (3,307}

- - 1,560

781 - -
{1,030) 2,134 (6,851)
366 445 9,660
{686) (2,103) 3,545
729 6,908 4,254
- (2,630) (835)
5,297 7,308 5,897
(8) 392 (1,270)

234 545 609
31,597 33,313 27,713
16,400 36,898 47,024
- 771 37,536
(47,652) (127,613) (137,892)
(267) (773) {655)
- (700) (758)

467 611 756
{31,052} (90,806) (53,989)
66,378 142,806 104,446
(2,457) (1,772) (1,193)
(789) - -
40 510 18,194
(61,245) (84,605) (92,779)
- - (2,489)
1,927 56,939 26,179
2,472 (554) (97)

$24,817 $ 25,371 $ 25468

$ 27,289 $ 24,817 $ 2537

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Net cash paid for
Interest

Income taxes

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

$ 17,248 $ 24,474 $ 26,131

$ 11 $ 58 $ 27




Finandel Satements

a. Organization

Willis Lease Finance Corporation (“Willis” or the “Comp-
any”) is a provider of aviation services whose primary focus
is on providing operating leases of aftermarket commercial
aircraft engines and other aircraft-related equipment to air
carriers, manufacturers and overhaul/repair facilities world-
wide. Willis also engages in the selective purchase and
resale of commercial aircraft engines.

Terandon Leasing Corporation (Terandon), T-2 inc. (T-2),
T-4 Inc. (T-4), T-5 Inc. (T-5), T-7 Inc. (T-7), T-8 Inc. (T-8), T-10
Inc. {T-10), T-11 Inc. (T-11), WLFC Engine Pooling Company
(WLFC-Pooling) and WLFC-ACT1 Inc. are wholly-owned con-
solidated subsidiaries of Willis. They are all California cor-
porations (except WLFC-AC1 Inc., which is incorporated in
Delaware) and were established to purchase and lease and
reselt commercial aircraft engines and parts.

WLFC (Ireland) Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Willis. WLFC (Ireland) Limited was formed in 1998 to facili-
tate certain of Willis’ international leasing activities.

During the year 2002, WLFC Funding Corporation was
merged into its parent and dissolved. Willis Engine Funding
LLC {(“WEF"} is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Willis, WEF
is a Delaware limited liability company and was established
in 2002 for the purpose of financing aircraft engines. WLFC
Funding (Iireland) Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
WEF and was established in 2001 to facilitate certain inter-
national leasing activities. Prior to the establishment of
WEF, WLFC Funding {Ireland) Limited was wholly-owned
by WLFC Funding Corporation.

Willis Aeronautical Services, Inc. (“WASI”) was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Willis. WASI was a California corpora-
tion established for the purpose of marketing and selling
aircraft parts and components and was sold in November
2000. In May 1999 the Company contributed the operations
and assets of its engine disassembly services business,
Pacific Gas Turbine Center Incorporated (“PGTC inc.”), to

a newly formed joint venture, Pacific Gas Turbine Center,
LLC ("PGTC LLC"). The Company sold its interest in PGTC
LLC in November 2000.

Management considers the continuing operations of
the Company to operate in one reportable segment.

b. Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Willis, Terandon, T-2, T-4, T-5, T-7, T-8, T-10, T-11, WASI
(11 months ended November 2000}, WEF, WLFC-Pooling,
WLFC-AC1 Inc., WLFC Funding (Ireland) Limited and WLFC
(Ireland) Limited (together, the “Company”). All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been elimi-
nated in consolidation.

c. Revenue Recognition

Revenue from leasing of aircraft equipment is recognized
as operating lease or finance lease revenue over the terms
of the applicable lease agreements. Revenue is not recog-
nized when cash collection is not reasonably assured. The
Company includes in operating lease revenue non-refund-
able maintenance payments received from lessees to the
extent that, in the Company’s opinion, it would not be eco-
nomically advantageous to overhaul the engine the next
time the life-limited parts need to be replaced. In this cir-
cumstance, the engines are normally sold for dismantling.

d. Equipment Held for Operating Lease

Aircraft assets held for operating lease are stated at cost,
less accumulated depreciation. Certain professional fees
incurred in connection with the acquisition and leasing of
aircraft assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such
assets. Major overhauls paid for by the Company which
add economic value are capitalized and depreciated over
the estimated remaining useful life of the equipment.

The Company generally depreciates engines on a
straight-line basis over a 15 year period from the acquisition
date to a 55% residual value. The Company believes that
this methodology accurately reflects the Company’s typical
holding period for the assets and, further, that the residual




value assumption reasonably approximates the selling price
of the assets 15 years from date of acquisition.

For engines or aircraft that are leased with an intent to
disassemble upon ultimate lease termination, the Company
depreciates the engines or aircraft over their estimated
lease term to a residual value based on an estimate of the
wholesale value of the parts after disassembily.

The spare parts packages owned by the Company are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful
life of 15 years to a 25% residual value.

The aircraft owned by the Company are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of 13 to
20 years to a 15% to 17% residual value.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposa! of Long-Lived
Assets,” (SFAS 144) requires that long-lived assets and cer-
tain identifiable intangibles to be held and used by an entity
be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable, and long-lived assets and certain
identifiable intangibles to be disposed of generally be
reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less
cost to sell. Impairment is identified by comparison of
undiscounted forecast cash flows over the life of the asset
with the asset’s book value. If the forecast undiscounted
cash flows are less than the book value the asset is written
down to its fair value. The Company reviews at least quar-
terly the carrying value of long-lived assets. Such reviews
resulted in a write-down of assets of $3.1 million, $362,000
and $147,000 in continuing operations (disclosed separately
as “Write-down of Equipment”) and $0, $266,000 and
$471,000 in discontinued operations {included with (Loss)/
Gain on Disposal of Discontinued Operations in the Income
Statement) in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

e. Loan Commitment and Related Fees

To the extent that the Company is required to pay fees in
order to secure debt, such fees are capitalized and amor-
tized over the life of the related loan on a straight-line basis
which approximates the interest method.

f. Maintenance Costs

Maintenance costs under the Company's leases are generally
the responsibility of the lessees. Additionally, under many
of the Company's leases, lessees pay fees to the Company
based on the usage of the asset. Upon the completion of
approved maintenance of an asset, such fees are returned
to the lessee up to the amount of repair but not exceeding
the use fees paid by the lessee. The Company records a
Maintenance Reserve liability in connection with the obliga-
tion to reimburse lessees for approved maintenance. Under
certain of the Company'’s leases, the lessee is not obligated
to perform maintenance on the asset. To the extent that
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such leases require the lessee to make payments to the
Company based on the usage of the asset and the Company
does not plan to apply such payments to the repair of the
asset, such as when the asset is to be run-out and disas-
sembled for parts, the usage payments are included in lease
revenue.

g. Interest Rate Hedging

The Company has entered into various hedge agreements
to mitigate its exposure on its variable rate borrowings.
The differential to be paid or received under the swap
agreements is charged or credited to interest expense.

The Company adopted SFAS 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” {as amended
by SFAS 137 and 138), and under these Statements the
Company'’s interest rate swaps were designated as cash
flow hedges. Cash flow hedges are recognized on the bal-
ance sheet at their fair value. The Company formally docu-
ments all relationships between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk-management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. This
process includes linking all cash flow hedges to liabilities
on the balance sheet. The Company also formally assesses,
both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis,
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transac-
tions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows.
When it is determined that a derivative is not highly effec-
tive as a hedge or that it has ceased to be a highly effective
hedge, the Company discontinues hedge accounting
prospectively.

Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly
effective and that is designated and qualifies as a cash flow
hedge are recorded in other comprehensive income, until
earnings are affected by the variability in cash flows of the
designated hedged item.

The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospec-
tively when it is determined that the derivative is no longer
effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of the
hedged item, the derivative expires or is sold, terminated,
or exercised or management determines that designation
of the derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer
appropriate. On January 1, 2001, the Company recorded a
transition adjustment of $464,000 (net of tax of $279,000),
representing the net unrealized loss on interest rate swap
agreements and for the year ended December 31, 2001,
recorded adjustments to other Accumulated Comprehensive
Loss of $1.4 million (net of tax of $0.8 million) representing
the net unrealized losses incurred during 2001 relating to
the swap agreements.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company
recorded adjustments to Accumulated Other Comprehen-
sive Incomef{Loss) of $239,000 (net of tax of $131,000) for
changes in fair value of effective cash filow hedges and



charges of $0.1 million to interest expense for changes in
fair value of ineffective cash flow hedges. Refer to Note 5
for further details.

For the year ended December 31, 2000, prior to the adop-
tion of SFAS 133, the Company entered into interest rate
swap agreements to reduce its exposure to market risks
from changing interest rates. For interest rate swaps, the
differential to be paid or received is accrued and recognized
in interest expense and will change as market interest rates
change. If a swap is terminated prior to its maturity, the
gain or loss is recognized over the remaining original life of
the swap if the item hedged remains outstanding, or imme-
diately, if the hedged item does not remain outstanding. If
the swap is not terminated prior to maturity, but the under-
lying hedged item is no longer outstanding, the interest rate
swap is marked to market and any unrealized gain or loss is
recognized immediately.

h. Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability method of
accounting for income taxes. Under the asset and liability
method, deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax
consequences of “temporary differences” by applying
enacted statutory tax rates applicable to future years to dif-
ferences between the financial statement carrying amounts
and the tax bases of existing assets and liabilities. The effect
on deferred taxes of a change in the tax rates is recognized
in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

1. Property, Equipment and Furnishings

Property, equipment and furnishings are recorded at cost
and depreciated by the straight-line method over the esti-
mated useful lives of the related assets, which range from
three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are recorded
at cost and depreciated by the straight-line method over
the lease term. Property, equipment and furnishings are
included as other assets in the balance sheets.

j. Residual Sharing with Lenders

Certain of the Company’s credit agreements required the
Company to share “residual proceeds” as defined in the
agreements with the lenders upon sale of engines held for
operating lease. The Company provided for its residual
sharing obligation with respect to each engine by a charge
or credit to income or expense, each period, sufficient to
adjust the residual share payable at the balance sheet date
to the amount that would be payable at that date if all
engines under said agreements were sold on the balance
sheet date at their net book values.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, no
engines were subject to residua! sharing arrangements as
during 2001 the subject engines were sold and/or loans
repaid and residual share obligations settled in full.

k. Sale of Leased Equipment

The Company regularly sells equipment from its lease port-
folio. This equipment may or may not be subject to a lease
at time of sale. The gain or loss on such sales is recognized
as revenue and consists of proceeds associated with the
sale less the net book value of the asset sold and any direct
costs associated with the sale. To the extent that deposits or
maintenance reserves are not included in the sale and the
liability associated with such items is transferred to the pur-
chaser of the equipment, the Company includes such items
in its calculation of gain or loss. The Company also engages
in engine exchanges and where the cash element of the
exchange exceeds 25% of the fair value of the transaction
the exchange is treated as a monetary one and the gain on
sale is recognized.

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers highly liquid investments readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, with original matu-
rities of 90 days or less, as cash equivalents.

m. Reclassifications

Certain items in the consolidated financial statements of
prior years have been reclassified to conform to the current
year's presentation.

n. Management Estimates

These financial statements have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
requires the Company to make estimates and judgments
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, rev-
enues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, the Company
evaluates its estimates, including those related to residual
values, estimated asset lives, bad debts, income taxes, con-
tingencies and litigation. The Company bases its estimates
on historical experience and on various other assumptions
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions.

Management believes that the following accounting poli-
cies and estimates are critical to the results of operations:
useful life of equipment, residual values and asset impair-
ment (refer to Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations for further
information).




If the useful lives or residual values are lower than those
estimated by the Company, upon sale of the asset a loss
may be realized. Significant management judgment is
required in the forecasting of future operating results which
are used in the preparation of projected undiscounted cash
flows and should different conditions prevail, material
impairment write-downs may occur.

o. Comprehensive Income

The Company reports changes in equity from all sources.
For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, compre-
hensive income includes net income and the net gain or
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loss on the change in fair value of cash flow hedges. For
the year ended December 31, 2000, comprehensive income
eqgualed net income.

p. Per Share Information

Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing
net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. The computation of
fully diluted earnings per share is similar to the computa-
tion of basic earnings per share, except for the inclusion
of all potentially dilutive common shares.

The reconciliation between basic common shares and fully diluted common shares is presented below:

Years Ended December 31, (in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Shares

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 8,831 8,77 7,512
Potentially dilutive common shares 20 121 95
Total shares 8,851 8,892 7,607
Potential common stock excluded as anti-dilutive in period 1,263 587 427

g. Investments

Investments are in non-marketable securities where man-
agement does not have significant influence and are record-
ed at cost. Management evaluates the investments for
impairment quarterly and at December 31, 2002, no adjust-
ment to the carrying value was required.

r. Stock Options

The Company accounts for its stock based compensation
plans using the intrinsic value method prescribed by APB
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” and related interpretations, as atlowed under
SFAS 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”
APB 25 requires compensation expense to be recognized
over the employee service period based on the excess, if
any, of the quoted market price of the stock at the date the
award is granted or other measurement date, as applicable,
over an amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock.

In October 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”

(SFAS 123). SFAS 123 establishes financial accounting and
reporting standards for stock-based employee compensa-
tion plans. SFAS 123 encourages, but does not require, all
entities to adopt a fair value based method of accounting
for stock-based compensation plans in which compensation
cost is measured at the date the award is granted based on
the value of the award and is recognized over the employee
service period. However, SFAS 123 allows an entity to con-
tinue to use the method prescribed by Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25), with pro forma disclosures of net
income and earnings per share as if the fair value based
method had been applied.

In December 2002, FASB issued SFAS 148 “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure
- an Amendment of FASB Statement 123.” This Statement
amends SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compen-
sation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a
voluntary change to the fair value based method of account-
ing for stock-based employee compensation together with
enhanced disclosure requirements.




Nefes
Comtinuee

This Statement permits two additional transition methods
for entities that adopt the preferable method of accounting
for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this
Statement does not permit the use of the prospective method
of transition for changes to the fair value based method
made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2003.

At December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company had
two stock-based compensation plans, as described in Note
10. The Company applies APB 25 in accounting for its plans.
Accordingly, no compensation expense for continuing oper-
ations has been recognized for its Purchase Plan and Plan.

Had compensation cost for the Company’s two stock-based compensation plans and warrants been determined consistent with SFAS
148, the Company's net income and earnings per share would have been as follows:

Years Ended December 31, (in thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000
Income from continuing operations as reported $ 3,596 $ 7,643 $5,474
Deduct: total stock-based employees compensation expense determined under

fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effect (929) (1,191) (680)
Pro forma net income $ 2,667 $ 6,452 $4,794
Basic earnings per common share from continuing operations as reported $ 0.41 $ 0.87 $ 0.73
Basic earnings per common share from continuing operations pro forma $ 0.30 $ 0.74 $ 0.64
Diluted earnings per common share from continuing operations as reported $ 0.41 $ 0.86 $ 0.72
Diluted earnings per common share from continuing operations pro forma $ 030 $ 073 $ 0.63

The fair value of the purchase rights under the Purchase Plan, the Plan and the warrants is estimated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The assumptions underlying the estimates derived using the Black-Scholes model are as follows:

1996 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Years Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 3.47% 2.77% 6.75% 3.94% 2.77% 5.63%
Expected volatility 72.80% 74.88% 74.4% 72.80% 74.88% 74.4%
Expected life (in years) 3.89 3.05 3.77 0.5 -2.0 05-2.0 05-2.0

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed
for use in estimating the fair value of traded options that
have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In
addition, option valuation models require the input of highly
subjective assumptions including the expected stock price
volatility. Because the Company’s employee stock options
have characteristics significantly different from those of
traded options, and because changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,

in management’s opinion the existing models do not neces-
sarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of
the Company’s options.

s. Initial Direct Costs Associated with Leases

The Company accounts for the initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining a new lease by deferring and amortizing those
costs over the term of the lease.
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joint venture with Chromalloy Gas Turbine Corporation,
PGTC LLC, to SRT Group America.

As part of the transaction, the Company agreed to retain
the lease portfolio of engines maintained and managed by
WASI. Certain of these engines are subject to put option
arrangements where, at the option of the Company, SRT
Group America has agreed to purchase these engines in
the future for pre-determined prices.

To the extent that the engines in the portfolio retained
are subject to put options or are identified as likely to be
sold, the assets and the results of operation were included

2ss Discontinued Operations

On November 7, 2000, the Company entered into agreements
for a series of strategic transactions, each of which closed
on November 30, 2000, with Flightlease AG, a corporation
organized under the laws of Switzerland (“Flightlease”), SR
Technics Group, a corporation organized under the laws of
Switzerland {“SRT"), FlightTechnics, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company (“FlightTechnics”) and SR Technics Group
America, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“SRT Group America”},
each of which are affiliated companies.

The Company sold its aircraft parts and components sub-

in discontinued operations. Any remaining equipment
retained upon the sale of WASI and not disposed of as
of December 31, 2001, was reclassified to Continuing

sidiary, WASI and its membership interest in its engine repair Operations effective January 1, 2002.

Income from discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, are as follows:

(dollars in thousands) 2001 2000
Revenue

Operating lease income $ 637 $ 2,383
Spare parts sales - 23,479
Sale of equipment acquired for resale - 2,500
Other income - {20}
Total revenue $ 637 $ 28,342
Expenses

Depreciation expense $343 $ 2,206
Cost of spare parts sales 150 18,030
Cost of equipment acquired for resale — 2,150
General and administrative — 3,163
Total expenses $ 493 $ 25,539
Earnings from discontinued operations $144 $ 2,803
Net interest and finance cost 49 1,037
Loss from unconsolidated affiliate — 1,344
Earnings (loss) before income taxes 95 422
Income taxes {38) (164)

Income from discontinued operations $ 57 $ 258




Conirued

The (loss)/gain on disposa! of discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, is as follows:

(doliars in thousands) 2001 2000
Proceeds from sale of shares in WASI and interest in PGTC $ - $ 37,985
Book value of assets sold — (33,759)
$ - $ 4,226
Transaction costs - (448}
Operating loss from measurement date to closing — (588}
Post-closing sale price adjustment (384) —
Loss on disposal and write-down of leased engine portfolio (879) (471)
{Loss)/gain on disposal of discontinued operations before taxes $ (1,263) $ 2,719
Income taxes 507 (637)
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of discontinued operations $ (756) $ 2,082
Net assets of discontinued operations on the balance sheet as of December 31, 2001, are as follows:
{dollars in thousands) 2001
Receivables $ 40
Equipment held for operating lease {net of accumulated depreciation of $524) 1,214
Unearned lease revenue and security deposits (124)
Net assets of discontinued operations $1,130

Equipment Held
For Lease

At December 31, 2002, the Company had 120 aircraft
engines and related equipment {including equipment under
direct finance leases) with an aggregate original cost of
$521.8 million, 4 spare parts packages with an aggregate
original cost of $14.6 million and 6 aircraft with an aggre-
gate original cost of $24.9 million in its operating and
finance lease portfolio. At December 31, 2001, the Company
had 110 aircraft engines and related equipment with an
aggregate original cost of $499.8 million, 4 spare parts pack-
ages with an aggregate original cost of $14.8 million and 6
aircraft with an aggregate original cost of $23.6 million in its
operating and finance lease portfolio.

The Company has also entered into put option arrange-
ments regarding certain engines scheduled to be run to the
end of their useful lives to sell them at the Company’s option,
to SRT Group America (which includes avioserv, the succes-
sor to WASI} at pre-determined prices. At December 31, 2002,
there were five remaining engines with put options having
a book value of $1.0 million. In 2002, the Company gave
notice of its intention to exercise four of these put options
and intends to close the puts as soon as possible, subject to
satisfactory resolution of a contract dispute with avioserv.

A majority of the Company’s aircraft equipment is leased
and operated internationally. All leases relating to this
equipment are denominated and payable in U.S. dollars.
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The Company leases its aircraft equipment to lessees domiciled in 9 geographic regions. The tables below set forth geographic
information about the Company’s operating leased aircraft equipment grouped by domicile of the lessee:

Years Ended December 31, {in thousands) 2002 2001 2000

Operating lease revenue from continuing operations:

Region
United States $ 9,067 $ 12,669 $ 12,554
Canada 1,041 3,408 4,141
Mexico 2,717 2,004 3,560
Australia/New Zealand 305 — 280
Europe 24,806 27,919 16,775
South America 6,322 5,787 5,840
Asia 5,683 4,772 3,435
Africa 418 — —
Middle East 4,309 3,281 1,689

Totals $ 54,768 $ 59,841 $48,274

Operating lease revenue from continuing operations
less applicable depreciation, interest and residual share:

Region
United States $ 3,071 $ 4,424 $ 3,137
Canada 488 635 858
Mexico 1,177 652 1,105
Australia/New Zealand 141 - 64
Europe 12,461 11,178 4,273
South America 3,257 1,765 1,552
Asia 2,978 1,720 816
Africa 135 - —
Middle East 1,860 1,075 385
Off-lease and other (8,097) (1,541) (557)

Totals $17,471 $ 19,808 $ 11,633

Net book value of operating leased assets:

Region
United States $ 47,484 $ 85,235 $ 74,045
Canada 13,415 493 32,714
Mexico 26,775 13,247 12,737
Australia/New Zealand 18,103 — —
Europe 179,230 192,266 186,728
South America 44,265 48,304 40,484
Asia 42,450 38,368 22,946
Africa 15,462 — —
Middie East 34,173 35,255 11,895
Off-lease and other 75,040 74,874 27,265

Totals $ 496,398 $ 488,042 $ 408,814

Included in “off-lease and other” is equipment that is held for disposal totaling approximately $2.4 million at December 31, 2002.
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Finance leased assets generated $629,000, $674,000 and $738,000 of revenue in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. After estimated
interest expense such assets, generated $331,000, $178,000 and $53,000 respectively. The net investment in direct finance leases on
December 31, 2002 and 2001, was as follows:

{in thousands) 2002 2001
Minimum payments receivable $ 2,703 $ 3,799
Estimated residual value of leased assets : 4,850 4,950
Unearned income (821} (1,450}
Net investment in finance lease $ 6,832 $ 7,299

As of December 31, 2002, minimum future payments under noncancelable leases were as follows:

{in thousands) Operating Finance
Year
2003 $ 43,77 $ 1,428
2004 29,039 1,275
2005 22,385 -
2006 13,528 -
2007 9,587 —
Thereafter 14,420 -
$ 132,730 $2,703

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the lease status of the equipment held for operating lease was as follows:

Years Ended December 31, {net book value, in thousands) 2002 2001
Lease Term

Off-lease and other $ 75,040 $ 74,874
Month-to-month leases 40,566 49,620
Leases expiring 2002 - 119,162
Leases expiring 2003 156,453 86,381
Leases expiring 2004 35,782 30,388
Leases expiring 2005 48,062 38,887
Leases expiring 2006 53,790 52,039
Leases expiring 2007 30,213 —
Leases expiring thereafter 56,492 36,691

$ 486,398 $ 488,042
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Notes Payable

Notes payable consisted of the following:

As of December 31, {in thousands) 2002 2001
Note payable at a floating interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.3%. Secured by aircraft engines

and the proceeds thereof. The note matures in October 2006. $ 529 $ 685
Subordinated note payable at a fixed interest rate of 7%. Secured by aircraft engines, spare parts

and the proceeds thereof. The note matures in June 2004 but was repaid in January 2003. 366 610
Notes payable at a fixed interest rate of 8.63%. Secured by aircraft engines

and the proceeds thereof. The note matures in September 2006. 2,995 3,304
Note payable at a fixed interest rate of 8.18% secured by aircraft and the proceeds thereof.

The note matured in January 2003 and was extended until March 2003. 3,884 5,338
Note payable at a fixed interest rate of 6.95% secured by aircraft and the proceeds thereof.

The note matures in September 2005. 6,799 7,634

Note payable at a floating rate of interest based on commercial paper rates plus 1.55% secured by engines,
the proceeds thereof and certain deposits. The facility had a committed amount of $190 million. The facility
had an eight-year initial term with a revolving period extended to April 2003 followed by a seven-year
amortization period. The Company had guaranteed the obligations under the facility on a limited basis,
up to an amount equal to the greater of: (i) the lesser of $5.0 million and 20% of the outstanding obligations
or (ii} 10% of the outstanding obligations. This facility was repaid in 2002. - 183,715

$225 million Class A notes payable at a floating rate of interest based on commercial paper rates plus
an average weighted spread of 1.48% and $25 million Class B notes payable at LIBOR plus an average
weighted spread of 4.06%. The spreads will increase by pre-determined amounts during the loan to
maximum average weighted spreads of 2.69% and 6.29% respectively, by September 2003. The facility
has a committed amount of $250 million. The facility has a one-year revolving period ending September
2003, followed by a four-year amortization period. However, $50 million is only available to be drawn on
until March 31, 2003. The Company has a guarantee to Class B Noteholders to a maximum of $25 million.
The assets of the Issuer (WEF) and any associated Owner Trust are not available to satisfy the obligations

of the Company or any of its affiliates. 200,000 —
Credit facility at a floating rate of interest of LIBOR plus 2.00%. Secured by engines, and the proceeds thereof.

The facility has a committed amount of $125 million. The facility matures in May 2004. 125,000 108,245
Note payable at a floating rate of LIBOR plus 2.75%. The note matures in December 2009. Secured by an aircraft. 460 500

Note payable at a floating rate of LIBOR plus 2%. The note matures in proportion to the leases of assets
pledged under the facility up to March 30, 2005. The facility has a committed amount of $35 million.

Secured by aircraft engines and the proceeds thereof. This loan was repaid in 2002. - 22,822
Note payable at a floating rate of LIBOR plus 2.05% The note matures on June 30, 2005.
Secured by aircraft engines and the proceeds thereof. 24,547 26,694

Total notes payable $ 364,680 $ 359,547
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In 2002, the Company prepaid a $35.0 million credit The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is esti-
facility at a discount, generating a gain of $4.1 million. mated based on quoted market prices for the same or simi-

At December 31, 2002, LIBOR was approximately 1.38% lar issues or on the current rates offered to the Company for
and the Commercial Paper rate was approximately 1.42%. debt of the same remaining maturities. The fair value of the
At December 31, 2001, the rates were 1.87% and 2.04%, Company'’s debt is estimated by the Company to be $362.9
respectively. million at December 31, 2002.

Principal outstanding at December 31, 2002, is repayable as follows:

{in thousands)

Year

2003 $ 10,840
2004 140,669
2005 36,895
2008 14,108
2007 1,777
Thereafter 150,391

$ 364,680




Certain of the debt instruments above also have covenant
requirements such as a minimum tangible net worth and
interest coverages. As of December 31, 2002, the Company
was in compliance with all covenant requirements.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had a $125.0 million
revolving credit facility to finance the acquisition of aircraft
engines and spare parts for lease as well as for general
working capital purposes. As of December 31, 2002, this
facility was fully drawn. The facility matures in May 2004.
The interest rate on this facility at December 31, 2002, is
LIBOR plus 2.00%. Under the $125.0 million revolver facility,
all subsidiaries except WLFC-AC1 and WEF jointly and
severally guarantee payment and performance of the terms
of the loan agreement. The maximum guarantee is $125.0
million plus any accrued and unpaid interest, fees or reim-
bursements but is limited at any given time to the sum of
the principal outstanding plus interest and fees. The guaran-
tee would be triggered by a default under the agreement
and the lenders making a call under the guarantee. The
lenders have the option, upon default, to either call for a
payment, demand performance or call the full amount of
the loan.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had a $24.5 million
term loan facility available to a wholly-owned consolidated
subsidiary of the Company, WLFC-AC1 Inc., for the financing
of jet aircraft engines sold by the Company to such sub-
sidiary. The facility is a five-year term loan with final mat-
urity of June 30, 2005. The interest rate is LIBOR plus 2.05%.
This facility is fully drawn. The Company has guaranteed
the obligations of WLFC-AC1 under the terms of this facility.
The lenders have the ability, upon default, to either call the
full amount of the loan or draw upon the guarantee to cure
a deficiency. The maximum amount of the guarantee is
therefore the principal sum outstanding plus any accrued
and unpaid interest and fees.
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At December 31, 2002, the Company had a $250.0 million
warehouse facility, available to a wholly-owned consolidated
special purpose entity, Willis Engine Funding LLC (WEF) for
the purpose of financing aircraft engines, comprised of
$225.0 million Class A notes payable at a floating rate of
interest based on commercial paper rates plus currently an
average weighted spread of 1.48% and $25.0 million Class
B notes payable at LIBOR plus an average weighted spread
of 4.06%. The spreads will increase by pre-determined
amounts during the loan to maximum average weighted
spreads of 2.69% and 6.29% respectively, by September
2003. The facility has a one-year revolving period ending
September 2003, followed by a four-year amortization peri-
od. However, $50.0 million is only available to be drawn on
until March 31, 2003. The engines owned by WEF are trans-
ferred into individual Owner Trusts to provide security for
the lenders in the event of WEF’s bankruptcy. In each case
WEF is the beneficiary of the Owner Trust. The Company
has a guarantee to Class B Noteholders to a maximum of
$25 million. If WEF defaults on its obligations, under the
guarantee, the full amount of the Class B notes outstanding
(together with any accrued interest and fees) is due and
payable immediately. The assets of the Issuer (WEF) and
any associated Owner Trust are not available to satisfy the
obligations of the Company or any of its affiliates.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company held
deposits in the amount of $24.5 million and $20.4 million,
respectively, consisting of bank accounts that are subject
to withdrawal restrictions as per lease or loan agreements.
Included in these amounts are payments to the Company
required by certain lease agreements for periodic engine
maintenance. These accounts also include security deposits
held. Substantially all of the deposits bear interest for the
Company’s benefit.




Derivative Instruments

The Company holds a number of interest rate swaps to
mitigate its exposure to changes in interest rates, in particu-
lar LIBOR, as a large portion of the Company's borrowings
are at variable rates. In addition, WEF is required under

its credit agreement to hedge a portion of its borrowings.
These swaps have been documented and designated as
cash flow hedges under SFAS 133 “Accounting for Deriv-
ative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (as amended

by SFAS 137 and 138}. At December 31, 2002, the Company
was a party to interest rate swap agreements with notional
outstanding amounts of $55.0 million, remaining terms of
between 8 and 60 months and fixed rates of between 3.32%
and 5.96%. The fair value of these swaps at December

31, 2002, was negative $1.9 million and represented the
estimated amount the Company would have to pay to
terminate the swaps. The Company purchased a number
of forward-commencing interest rate caps, documented
and designated as cash flow hedges, during the second
quarter of 2002. These caps have notional amounts of
$60.0 million, with 3-year terms, and effective dates com-
mencing in 2003 and rates capped at 5.5%. At December
31, 2002, the estimated fair value of the caps was positive
$57,000, representing an asset of the Company.

Under the swap contracts, the difference between the
index and the fixed rate that is paid or received by the
Company is charged or credited to interest expense.

The Company uses an external provider to ascertain the
fair value of the hedges and assess the effectiveness of the
hedges during the period. Valuation of the hedges requires
certain assumptions for underlying variables and the use of
different assumptions would result in a different valuation.

Management believes it has applied assumptions consis-
tently during the period and has not changed its methods of
valuation or assessment of effectiveness during the period.
The Company reviews the effectiveness of its interest
rate hedges on a quarterly basis and adjusts the fair value
of the interest rate hedges through either Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) and/or earnings for
the period. For the year ended December 31, 2002, the
change in fair value of the interest rate hedges recorded
to Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income/{Loss) was
a gain of $0.2 million (net of tax of $0.1 million) and approx-
imately $0.1 million change in fair value was recognized in
earnings as an expense. For the year ended December 31,
2001, the change in fair value of the interest rate hedges
recorded to Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income/
(Loss) was a loss of $1.4 million (net of tax of $0.8 million)
and on January 1, 2001, upon adoption of Statement SFAS
133, a transition adjustment of a loss of $0.5 million
{net of tax benefit of $0.3 million) was also recorded to
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss). Interest
expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,
was increased due to the Company’s interest rate hedges
by approximately $2.8 million and $1.9 million, respectively.
For the year ended December 31, 2000, interest expense
was reduced due to the Company'’s interest rate hedges by
approximately $0.5 million. Reclassification into earnings in
future periods may occur if the effectiveness of the interest
rate hedges is reduced or they are terminated ahead of their
maturity. It is not possible to ascertain the effect on earn-
ings in future periods of a reduction in effectiveness at this
time. However, it is the Company’s intention to hold the
interest rate hedges until their maturity and it does not
anticipate any reduction in hedge effectiveness.
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The components of income tax for continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, included in the

accompanying consolidated statements of income were as follows:

{in thousands) Federal State Total

December 31, 2002

Current $ 68 $ 13 $ 81

Deferred 1,006 (349) 657
$ 1,074 $ (336) $ 738

December 31, 2001

Current $(3,018) $ 14 $ (3,004)

Deferred 6,254 1,124 7,378
$ 3,236 $1,138 $ 4,374

December 31, 2000

Current $ - $ 15 $ 15

Deferred 2,853 600 3,453
$ 2,853 $ 615 $ 3,468

The following is a reconciliation of the federal income tax expense at the statutory rate of 34% to the effective income tax expense on

continuing operations:

Years Ended December 31,

{in thousands and % of pre-tax income) 2002 2001 2000
Statutory federal income tax expense $1,474 34% $4,086 34% $ 3,040 34%
State taxes, net of federal benefit (222) (5)% 751 6% 406 5%
Extraterritorial Income Exclusion (533) (12)% (468) (4)% - —
Other 19 - 5 - 22 —
Effective income tax expense $ 738 17% $4,374 36% $ 3,468 39%
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In 2002 and 2001, the Company has determined that
a number of assets and their associated leases qualify for
exclusion from federal taxable income under the Extraterri-
torial Income Exclusion rules, resulting in a reduction in the
federal effective tax rate.

In 2002, the Company changed its estimated apportion-
ment of income attributable to California resulting in an

income tax benefit of $0.6 million. In addition, the Company
has provided for a gross valuation allowance of $0.1 million
relating to California net operating losses expiring in 2006
where management believes realizing the benefit of the loss
carry forward is not assured, shown in state taxes in the
previous table.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented

below:

As of December 31, {in thousands) 2002 2001
Deferred Tax Assets
Charitable contributions $ 52 $ 45
Unearned lease revenue 2,166 2,386
State taxes 4 5
Reserves and allowances 131 66
Alternative minimum tax credit 335 335
Net operating loss carry forward 23,358 16,342
Total gross deferred tax assets $ 26,045 $ 19,179
Less valuation allowances (115) —
Net deferred tax assets $ 25,931 $ 19,179
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation on aircraft engines and equipment {50,483) (43,074)
$ (24,552} $ (23,895)
Deferred tax asset related to unrealized loss on derivative instruments 963 1,091

Net deferred tax liability

$ (23,588} $ (22,804}

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had net operating
loss carry forwards of approximately $67.1 million for fed-
eral tax purposes and $9.5 million for state tax purposes.
The federal net operating loss carry forwards will expire
through the year 2022 and the state net operating loss carry
forwards will expire through 2014. However, the Company
has provided for a valuation allowance against California
net operating losses (NOLs) totaling $2.0 million that expire
in 2006 and realization is not assured. Net operating losses
can be used as a deduction against future income arising

from the U.S. consolidated filing group. As of December
31, 2002, the Company also had alternative minimum tax
credits of approximately $0.3 million for federal income tax
purposes which have no expiration date and which should
be available to offset future alternative minimum tax liabili-
ties. Management believes that no valuation allowance is
required on deferred tax assets, other than the California
NOL as stated, as it is more likely than not that ail amounts
are recoverable through future taxable income.




Risk Management Issues

Risk Concentrations

Financial instruments which potentially subject the
Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally
of cash deposits and receivables.

The Company places its cash deposits with financial
institutions and other creditworthy issuers and limits the
amount of credit exposure to any one party. Concentrations
of credit risk with respect to lease receivables are limited
due to the large number of customers comprising the
Company’s customer base, and their dispersion across
different geographic areas.

Interest Rate Risk Management

To mitigate exposure to interest rate changes, the Company
has entered into interest rate swap and cap agreements. As
of December 31, 2002, such swap agreements had notional
outstanding amounts of $55 million, average remaining
terms of between 8 and 60 months and average fixed rates
of between 3.32% and 5.96%. Caps had notional amounts
of $60.0 million, effective dates commencing in 2003, with
3-year terms and rates capped at 5.5%

As a result of these swap arrangements, interest expense
was increased in 2002 and 2001, by $2.8 million and $1.9
million. For further information see Note 1(g) and Note 5.

son . . .
=-o  Commitments, Contingencies,
Guarantees and Indemnities

The Company has two leases for its office space. The
annual lease rental commitment for the Sausalito office
for 2003 is approximately $307,000 and the lease expires
on December 31, 2005 and there are scheduled rent in-
creases in the remaining two years. The remaining lease
rental commitment, for premises subleased from aviosery,
is approximately $84,000 and the lease expires on
November 30, 2003.

The Company has a commitment to purchase, for
delivery during 2003, certain aircraft engine equipment
for a total of approximately $1.3 million.

The Company has a number of guarantees in respect
of its credit facilities. Refer to Note 6 for a full description
of the nature and terms of these guarantees. Additionally,
the Company generally indemnifies the purchaser of its
equipment against any taxes arising from the sale of the
equipment (except taxes incurred by the purchaser). The
amount of the indemnification is not determinable and
the Company has not had to make any payments under
such indemnifications.
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Investments

In July 1999, the Company entered into an agreement to
participate in a joint venture formed as a limited company
— Sichuan Snecma Aero-engine Maintenance Co. Ltd.
{Sichuan Snecma). The Company’s investment is 7% in the
venture. Sichuan Snecma will focus on providing mainte-
nance services for CFM56 series engines. Other participants
in the joint venture are China Southwest Airlines, Snecma
Services and Beijing Kailan Aviation Technology
Development and Services Corporation. As of the year
ended December 31, 2002, $1.5 million has been con-
tributed. This investment is recorded at cost.

Employee Benefit Plans

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has a 1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(the “Purchase Plan"} under which 75,000 shares of com-
mon stock have been reserved for issuance. This plan was
effective in September 1996. Eligible employees may desig-
nate not more than 10% of their cash compensation to be
deducted each pay period for the purchase of common
stock under the Purchase Plan, and participants may pur-
chase not more than 1,000 shares or $25,000 of common
stock in any one calendar year. Each January 31 and July 31
shares of common stock are purchased with the employees’
payroll deductions over the immediately preceding six
months at a price per share of 85% of the lesser of the mar-
ket price of the common stock on the purchase date or the
market price of the common stock on the date of entry into
an offering period. In fiscal 2002 and 2001, 8,025 and 7,092
shares of common stock, respectively were issued under the
Purchase Plan.

The weighted average per share fair value of the employ-
ee’s purchase rights under the Purchase Plan for the rights
granted in 2002 and 2001, were $2.67 and $3.22, respectively.

1996 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan

In June 1986, the Board of Directors approved the 1996
Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan was
amended by the Stockholders and restated in May 2001, to
provide for an increase in the number of shares reserved for
issuance under the Plan from 1,525,000 shares to 2,525,000
shares. The plan includes a Discretionary Option Grant
Program, a Stock Issuance Program and an Automatic
Option Grant Program for eligible non-employee Board
members.

p37




The stock options vest over a period determined by the Plan
Administrator (usually four years), have a life of up to ten
years and the exercise price on grant is equal to the market
value of the shares on that date.

A summary of the activity under the plan is as follows:

Options Qutstanding

Weighted Weighted

Options Average Average

Available Exercise Fair

for Grant Options Price Value
Balances at December 31, 1999 97,315 737,935 $10.43
Additional options made available 500,000 - —

Options granted (389,264} 389,264 10.70 $3.35
Options exercised - — -
Options canceled 151,544 {151,544) 10.94
Balances at December 31, 2000 359,595 975,655 $ 854
Additional options made available 1,000,000 - -

Options granted {536,909) 535,909 7.07 $3.24
Options exercised - {114,223) 4.07
Options canceled 122,835 (122,835) 16.47
Balances at December 31, 2001 946,521 1,274,508 $ 7.67

QOptions granted (317,542} 317,542 4.67 $2.63
Qptions canceled 54,638 {54,636} 5.37
Balances at December 31, 2002 683,615 1,537,412 $ 713

A summary of the outstanding, exercisable options and their weighted average exercise prices is as follows:

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Options Price

At December 31, 2000 347,474 $10.70

At December 31, 2001 558,300 $ 9.58

At December 31, 2002 822,367 $ 863
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The following table summarizes information concerning outstanding and exercisable options at December 31, 2002:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Qutstanding  Life (in Years) Price  Outstanding Price

Exercise Prices
From $1.30 10 $5.40 768,549 8.34 $ 4.87 212,828 $ 446
From $5.50 to $10.00 556,808 7.36 7.46 416,308 8.03
From $10.40 to $22.13 212,055 4.97 14.52 193,231 14.52
From $1.30 to $22.13 1,537,412 7.52 $ 713 822,367 $ 8.63

Employee 401(k) Plan

The Company adopted The Willis 401{k} Plan (the “401(k)
Plan"} effective as of January 1997. The 401(k) Plan pro-
vides for deferred compensation as described in Section
401(k} of the Internal Revenue Code. The 401(k) Plan is a
contributory plan available to essentially al! full-time and
part-time employees of the Company in the United States.
In 2002, employees who participated in the 401(k) Plan
could elect to defer and contribute to the 401(k} Plan up to
20% of pretax salary or wages up to $11,000 {or $12,000
for employees at least 50 years of age). The Company
matches employee contributions up to 50% of 8% of the
employee’s salary which totaled $94,000 in 2002 and
$99,000 in 2001 and up to 50% of 6% of the employees’
salary in 2000 for a total of $96,000.
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LT T Warrants

In conjunction with the initial public offering, the Company
sold five-year purchase warrants for $0.01 per warrant
covering an aggregate of 100,000 shares of common stock
exercisable at a price equal to 130% of the initial public
offering price. The warrants expired on September 18, 2001.

Equuty

During the year ended December 31, 2000, the Company
sold 1,300,000 newly issued shares of its common stock to
FlightTechnics and an option, exercisable within 18 months
of the closing date, to purchase newly issued shares of its
common stock in a private placement. The option was not
exercised and has lapsed.
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22258 Quarterly Consolidated Financial
ceass . .
seosse Information (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:

(in thousands, except per share data) ‘ Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Full Year
Fiscal 2002

Total revenue $ 14,352 $ 13,408 $ 14,005 $ 18,187 $ 59,952
Net income $ 966 $ 577 $ 33 $ 2,020 $ 3,596

Basic Earnings per Common Share
Net income $ 011 $ 007 $ 0.00 $ 023 $ 041

Diluted Earnings per Common Share

Net income $ 0.11 $ 007 $ 0.00 $ 023 $ 041

Average common shares outstanding 8,828 8,830 8,832 8,834 8,831

Diluted average common shares outstanding 8,854 8,852 8,841 8,857 8,851

Fiscal 2001

Total revenue $ 17,097 $ 19,227 $ 16,200 $ 13,627 $ 66,151

Income from continuing operations $ 2,499 $ 2,969 $ 1,755 $ 420 $ 7,643
Discontinued operations (179) (606) 45 41 (699)
Net income $ 2,320 $ 2,363 $ 1,800 $ 461 $ 6,944

Basic Earnings per Common Share

Income from continuing operations $ 029 $ 034 $ 020 $ 0.05 $ 087
Discontinued operations {0.02) {0.07) - - (0.08)
Net income $ 027 $ 027 $ 0.20 $ 0.05 $ 079

Diluted Earnings per Common Share

Income from continuing operations $ 0.28 $ 033 $ 020 $ 005 $ 086
Discontinued operations (0.02) (0.06) — - (0.08)
Net income $ 0.26 $ 027 $ 020 $ 005 $ 078
Average common shares outstanding 8,709 8,735 8,812 8,826 8,771

Diluted average common shares outstanding 8,883 8,905 8,954 8,844 8,892




cecaze Related Party and Similar
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azacom ]ransactions

The Company continues to use PGTC LLC's services to
repair/refurbish engines prior to sale or re-lease. The
Company also sells engines to avioserv. The Company has
also entered into put option arrangements regarding certain
engines scheduled to be run to the end of their useful lives
to sell them at the Company’s discretion, to avioserv at pre-
determined prices. The Company notified avioserv of its
intention to exercise put options with respect to four
engines and expects to close the puts during 2003, subject

to satisfactory resolution of a contract dispute with avioserv.

The Company also leases office and warehouse space from
avioserv with the lease term expiring November 30, 2003.

The Company entered into a business cooperation period
with Flightlease AG and SR Technics Group (SRT) originally
scheduled to end on November 30, 2003, however Flight-
lease is now in liquidation, and SRT has sold its interest
in SR Technics Switzerland, to a group consisting of 3i (an
investment company) and SRT’s management, and as a
result, the cooperation agreement was terminated January
20, 2003. During the years ended December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively, there were no transactions initiated by
either party. Flightlease and SRT are members of Flight-
Technics, an entity that owns 15% of the Company’s
common stock.

The Company leases engines to SR Technics Switzerland
having a book value of approximately $40.3 million with
lease terms expiring in up to eight years. The lease revenue
represents less than 10% of total revenues and SR Technics
Switzerland is the single largest lessee of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company
entered into a contractor’s agreement with a former execu-
tive of Flightlease and current Director of the Company,
Hans Jorg Hunziker. The agreement is for a one-year term,
ending September 2003, to provide strategic advice and
investigation into additional sources of capital.
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New York, New York 10038
800 937-5449 tel

Investor Relations Counsel
The Cereghino Group

5333 15th Avenue South, Suite 1500

Seattle, Washington 98108
206 762-0993 tel

Form 10-K, 10-Q & Press Releases

Form 10-K has been filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission. Copies of the 10-K,
10-Q and press releases may be obtained from
the investor relations area of our Web site:
www.wlifc.com, or by contacting our corporate
offices. Press releases are also available at The
Cereghino Group Web site: www.stockvaiues.com.

Stock Exchange Listing

Willis Lease Finance Corporation is listed
on the Nasdaq National Market System
under the symbol: WLFC.

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of stockholders will be
held on May 28, 2003, at 2:00 p.m. at the
Company’'s headquarters at 2320 Marinship
Way, Suite 300, Sausalito, California 94965.
All stockholders are cordially invited to attend.

2002 2001
Stock Information High Low High Low
Quarter 1 $5.89 $4.25 $11.19 $8.88
Quarter 2 5.34 4.25 12.20 7.85
Quarter 3 5.65 3.50 11.10 6.18
Quarter 4 6.13 3.25 6.96 3.00




Executive Team

Charles F. Willis, 1V

PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Donald A. Nunemaker

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Monica J. Burke

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Thomas E. MacAleavey

SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT
SALES AND MARKETING

Judith M. Webber

VICE PRESIDENT
TECHNICAL SERVICES

Richard A. Cogan

SENIOR COUNSEL

Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Charles F. Wiltis, IV

PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Glenn L. Hickerson

CHAIRMAN,
GATX AIR ADVISORY BOARD

Hans Jérg Hunziker

PRINCIPAL,

HUNZIKER LEASE & FINANCE;
FORMER PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,
FLIGHTLEASE AG LTD.

Gérard Laviec

FORMER PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,
CFM INTERNATIONAL;
FORMER CHAIRMAN,
SHANNON ENGINE SUPFORT

William M. LeRoy

PARTNER,
BDO SEIDMAN, LLP
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